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Item Name:  Navigational Markers of Rear Main Lead Tower 

(Navigational Markers Only) 
Location:  Private lane off 116 Church Street, The Hill [Newcastle City] 

SHI Number 3930002  

   
Address: Private lane off 116 Church Street  

Lot 1 DP 531497 
DP& I Region: Hunter & Central Coast 

Suburb / Nearest 
Town: 

The Hill 2300 
 

Historic Region: Lower Hunter 

Local Govt Area: Newcastle Parish: Newcastle 
State: NSW County: Northumberland 
Other/Former Names:   
Area/Group/Complex:  Group ID: 
Aboriginal Area: Awabakal  
Curtilage/Boundary:   
Item Type: Built  Group: Transport ï Water   Category: Leading Lights 
Owner: Port Authority of New South Wales  
Admin Codes: Code 2: Code 3: 
Current Use: Navigation aid  
Former Uses: Navigation aid  

Assessed 

Significance: 
 

Local Endorsed Significance: 

   
   

 

Statement of Significance: Important historical evidence inter-War navigational aids essential in the safe navigation of the harbour 
entrance and main shipping channel. 

 
Historical Notes or Provenance:   The item is located very close to the site of the Australian Agricultural Companyôs óAô Pit of 1831, which 
was served by the first railway in Australia.    While the lighthouse guided ships to the entrance of the harbour, negotiating the channel 
remained a difficult task.   Two stone leading light towers were built in 1865, one in Perkins Street near the church of St. Mary Star of the 
Sea and the other in Tyrrell Street.   The rear tower, which still stands, displayed a white light and the other, of which only the base 
remains, displayed a red light. 
 
These lights came under much criticism.   Mariners claimed that they were too close together, and that ships could stray up to 200ft. from 
the centre of the channel before the lights appeared to 'open'. Following the loss of a number of ships on the Oyster Bank, the lights were 
dubbed the 'misleading lights' and were mistrusted by the harbour pilots.   Despite continuing protests, it was not until 
1917 that the lights were replaced by towers and lights located below Church Street and on the harbour foreshore. The present rear main 
lead tower below Church Street was constructed in 1917, and has recently been reconditioned 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Themes: National Theme State Theme Local Theme 

 3. Economy Transport The shipping of coal and other goods 
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Item Name:  Navigational Markers of Rear Main Lead Tower 

(Navigational Markers Only) 
Location:  Private lane off 116 Church Street, The Hill [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 3930002 

  
Designer: Public Works Department, Rivers, Water Supply and Drainage Branch 
  

Maker / Builder:  Public Works Department 

  
Year Started:   1917 Year Completed: 1917 
  

Physical 
Description: 

 

Steel angle pylon navigational marker, lines up with the main lead towers located at the 
Newcastle Foreshore to mark correct entry line through the channel.   Steel ladder access to 
top platform.   Base enclosed by metal fencing and barbed wire. 
 

Physical Condition: Good 
 

Modification Dates: Unknown 
 

Recommended 
Management: 
 

Asset Management Plan requires condition-based assessments to be undertaken every two years. 

Management: Follow State Agency Heritage Guide 
Further Comments: 
 

 

 

 

Criterion ( a) 
 

 
Criterion (b) 
Criterion (c) 
Criterion (d) 
Criterion (e) 
Criterion (f) 
Criterion (g) 
 
 
Integrity / 
Intactness: 
 
References: 
 
Studies: 
 

 

The navigational markers are important historical evidence of the navigational aids used in the inter-War 
period.   They are located very close to the site of the Australian Agricultural Companyôs óAô Pit of 1831, a 
unique example of pioneering mining technology, served by Australiaôs first railway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The navigational markers on the Rear Main Lead Tower are representative of navigational aids once used 
to guide entrance through the channel. 

 
Good. 

 
Author Title Year 

Rosemary Melville Newcastle Port Corporation History 2002 
 

Author Title Number    Year 

Suters Architects s170 Heritage & Conservation Register 2001 
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Item Name:  Navigational Markers of Rear Main Lead Tower (Navigational 

Markers Only) 
Location:  Private lane off 116 Church Street, The Hill [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 3930002 

 

 
 

Location validity:  Spatial Accuracy:  

Map Name:  Map Scale:  

AMG Zone: Easting: Northing:  

Listings: Name: 

Within The Hill Conservation Area 
Title: Number: 

Newcastle LEP 2012 
Date: 

15/06/12 
 

 
 
 
 

Custom Field One: 

Custom Field Two: 

Custom Field Three: 

Custom Field Four: 

Custom Field Five: 
 

Custom Field Six: 

 
Data Entry: Date First Entered:16/04/14 Date Updated: N/A Status: Completed 
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Item Name:  Navigational Markers of Rear Main Lead Tower (Navigational 
Markers Only) 

Location:  Private lane off 116 Church Street, The Hill [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 3930002 

 
 
 

Image:  

 
Caption: Rear Main Lead tower, from the south. 

 

Copyright: Suters Architects 

Image by: Linda Smith 

Image Date: 2/08/2001 

Image Number: BW2:17 
 

Image Path: 
 

Image File: 3930059.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path 
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Item 
Name:  

Navigational Markers of Rear Main Lead Tower (Navigational Markers 

Only) 
Location:  Private lane off 116 Church Street, The Hill [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 3930002 
  
 
 

Image:  

 
Caption: Rear Main Lead Tower 

Copyright: EJE Architecture 

Image by: Shea Hedley 

Image Date: 23/02/2007 
 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 3930059a.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 
Address: 106 Bourke St Carrington 2294 DP&I Region: Hunter & Central Coast 
Suburb / Nearest 

Town: 
Lot 30 DP 1190075 Historic Region: Lower Hunter 

Local Govt Area: Newcastle Parish: Newcastle 
State: NSW County: Northumberland 

 

Other/Former Names: Hydraulic Power House 
Area/Group/Complex: Group ID: 
Aboriginal Area: Awabakal 
Curtilage/Boundary: 
Item Type: Built Group: Utilities ï Water   Category: Water Pump House 
Owner:  Port of Newcastle Lessor Pty Limited 

 

Admin Codes:  Code 2: Code 3: 
Current Use: Vacant 
Former Uses: Generation of Hydraulic 

Power and Electricity 
 
Assessed 

Significance: 

 

State Endorsed Significance: 

 

Statement of The Power House is significant as an example of civic architecture, albeit with a utilitarian purpose, showing 
Significance: the prestige of the Port, and particularly of the revenues derived from coal handling activity at The Dyke at the 

time or its erection and extension, and the importance of the cranes with their associated power source, first 
hydraulic and later electric as well. It is also a significant example of the Victorian Free Classical Style with 
detailed classical pediment , stone quoins and classical cornice.   Carved window bosses feature the Rose, 
Shamrock and Thistle of the nations of the United Kingdom, with the head of the British Lion on door keystone, 
symbolising in a Colonial environment the complementary roles of the peoples of the UK (tria juncta in uno). 
There is some technical significance in the remnant plumbing, mechanical and electrical relics, all of which help 
in interpretation.   Demolition of the unsympathetic rear additions of c.1906 and 1915 and eastern door awning 
have restored the symmetry of the building, although their disruptive effects on the northern wall have not yet 
been made good.   This degrades the otherwise high degree of intactness of the building fabric. 

Historical Notes The main structure was built in 1877 under the direction of the Public Works Department Harbours and Rivers 
or Provenance: Branch to house machinery which provided hydraulic pressure for the operation of cranes along the Dyke. The 

machinery was developed by engineer Sir William Armstrong for similar applications in England; it was built at 
the Hydraulic Machinery Factory of Sir W.G. Armstrong & Co. at Elswick, Newcastle-Upon-Tyne.   Elements of 
the building may have been designed by Edmund Spencer in the office of the Colonial Architect, James Barnet; 
by Barnet himself; by Sir W.G. Armstrong & Co.; or through a collaboration of some or all of these. E.O. 
Moriarty of the Harbours and River Navigation Branch of the Department of Public Works exerted a strong 
influence on the inception of the scheme. The main engine room was constructed with locally-made bricks by 
Jennings & Company of Sydney.   A railway siding, with a wagon turntable, supplied coal to the boilers. 
Extended in 1890-1891 (as originally planned) and in c.1906 and 1915.   These later additions were built in 
connection with electric lighting of The Dyke, and electric cranes at The Basin.   It was because of this that the 
name of óPower Houseô was gradually adopted.   Apart from the demolition of the two large chimneys, the 
original building remains relatively intact, although deterioration of some elements continues. The last hydraulic 
crane was placed out of use in 1967, after which the machinery and cranes were removed.   In providing power 
for cranes, the hydraulic power house is believed to be the only one of its kind in Australia.   The site its 
associated buildings are of great historic, archaeological and aesthetic value.   A conserved and reconstructed 
roof (1990s), new main doors, and some protective glazing are now featured. 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

Themes: National Theme State Theme Local Theme 

 3. Economy Transport shipbuilding 

 
 
 
 

Designer: Possibly NSW Government agency; or Sir W.G. Armstrong and Company, Hydraulic Machinery Factory, Elswick 
 

Maker / Builder: Jennings and Company; erection supervised by John Nicholson, under E.O. Moriarty 

 
Year Started: Year Completed: 1877 Circa: 

 

Physical Description:  Predominantly brick single storey building with decorative sandstone detail to openings, cornices, valances and 
corbels.   A central engine room, to accommodate two engines, is flanked by twin boiler rooms. Timber 
windows and doors.   Much carved stonework.   Metal truss roof.   Repaired and reconstructed slate roof 
(1990s).   Disruption and voids to northern wall now obvious since demolition of unsympathetic additions on 
that elevation.   Heavy cast iron guttering and downpipes.   Cast iron 10" water pipes to harbour still extant. Site 
surrounded by man-proof fence.   Interior is largely unaltered; while machinery has been removed, footings and 
fixing points are extant. 

 

Physical Condition: Poor to fair. Now secured against vandalism. Pigeons entering via window of eastern accumulator tower, near 
roof breach. Brick mortar joints deteriorating. Much evidence of damp damage to stonework.   Some 
incompatible patching of sandstone with cement. Damp is causing the stonework to fret, and to powder away. 

 

Modification Dates: Building extended in 1890-1891 (eastern wing added); c.1906, and1915, unsympathetic additions for 
generation of electricity for lighting at The Dyke, and for cranes at The Basin: some demolition of load-bearing 
fabric, and creation of new apertures.   Chimneys demolished in 1960s.   1990s: conservation and 
reconstruction of roof, main doors and some windows.   Some asbestos removal undertaken in 2007. 

Recommended Follow State Agency Heritage Guide and CMP. Further historical research needed. Establishing a suitable use 
for the building is crucial to its conservation. Undertake further maintenance works: bird proofing; 

Management: water proofing; preservation of significant fabric, particularly the sandstone; and repairing of the roof breach. 
Prepare a maintenance and documentation plan to achieve restoration, repair, maintenance and interpretation 
in accordance with Conservation Management Plan. Reconstruct depleted fabric as necessary. 

 

Prepare maintenance plan; follow State Agency Heritage Guide. 
Criterion (a) Demonstrates the important historic status of the Port, particularly that of The Dyke and The Basin, together 

with that of the advanced contemporary hydraulic technology.   Also evidence of early electrical applications. 
Criterion (b) Associated with Sir W.G. Armstrong & Co.; potentially associated with Edmund Spencer of the PWD. 

 
Criterion (c) Important example of the Victorian Free Classical Style with detailed classical pediment , stone quoins and 

dentil cornice. Slight technical significance in the remnant plumbing and machinery fixings. 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
 

Criterion (d) 

Criterion (e) 

Criterion ( f) Rare NSW example of hydraulic engine house, incorporating later adaptation to generation of electricity. 
Although some hydraulic plumbing is extant, significance is diminished by the removal of original machinery. 

Criterion (g) Representative example of the Victorian Free Classical style of architecture. 
 

Integrity / Intactness: Relatively intact; condition of some building elements deteriorating. 
 

References Author Title Year 

Sydney Morning Herald, 25 Feb 1878; Newcastle Morning Herald, August 1967, 22 Nov 1890 
 

Studies: Author Title Number    Year 

 
NSW Dept of Commerce Carrington Hydraulic Engine House Conservation Management Plan 2005 

 

Suters Architects Newcastle Heritage Study 1990 
 
 
 

Latitude:  Longitude: 
Location validity:  Spatial Accuracy: 
Map Name: 

AMG Zone: 

 

 
Easting: 

Map Scale: 

Northing: 

Listings: State Environmental Planning Policy (Three 
Ports) 2013 

Title: Number: Date: 2011 

 

Custom Field One: 

Custom Field Two: 

Custom Field Three: 

Custom Field Four: 

Custom Field Five: 
 

Custom Field Six: 
 

Data Entry:  Date First Entered:16/04/14 Date Updated:N/A Status: Incomplete 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Caption: Historic image of Hydraulic Engine House. 

Copyright: Expired; held by State Library of Victoria. 

Image by: John Harvey 

Image Date: Post-1890 
 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 
Image 

 

 
 
 

Caption: Facade and eastern boiler wing.   This wing matches but post-dates the main engine room. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/13 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 8861.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 

 
 
 

Caption: Eastern facade; unsympathetic awning formerly located above door has been removed. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/2013 

Image Number:BW3:2 
 

Image Path: 
 

Image File: 10034864.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
Image: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Caption: North-eastern facade.   Note effects of removal of intrusive additions on this elevation. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/2013 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 10034863.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
Image: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Caption: Detail of north-eastern elevation. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/13 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 100348834.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
Image: 

 

 

 
 

 
Caption: Window adapted to provide access to now-demolished unsympathetic additions. 

 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/13 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 100348835.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 

 
 

 
Caption: Northern interior. 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/2013 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 100348836.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Caption: Main body of engine house, looking east. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/2013 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 100348844.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 
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Item Name:  Hydraulic Power Station (Hydraulic Engine House) 
Location:  Bourke St, Carrington [Newcastle City] 
SHI Number 2170005 

 

 
Image: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Caption: Windows and central doorway of southern facade. 
 

Copyright: EJE Heritage 

Image by: David Campbell 

Image Date: 23/10/2013 

Image Number: 

Image Path: 

Image File: 1003488849.jpg 
 

Thumb Nail Path: 


